Teresa Giordano, Sui Juris
Citizen of California State

c/o 40960 California Oaks Rd., Box 281

Murrieta 92562

CALIFORNIA, USA

tel:  (909) 695-9186

fax:  (909) 695-2416

In Propria Persona

All Rights Reserved

without Prejudice

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,        )  Case No. CR 02-00372 DDP
                                 )

          Plaintiffs,            )  VERIFIED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

                                 )  BY DEFENDANT GIORDANO:
     v.                          )

                                 )  Sixth Amendment;

LYNNE MEREDITH et al.,           )  18 U.S.C. 4, 241, 242;

                                 )  28 U.S.C. 1652, 1746(1)

          Defendants.            )

---------------------------------)

                                 )

United States                    )

ex relatione                     )

Paul Andrew Mitchell,            )

                                 )

          Intervenor.            )

                                 )

_________________________________)

COMES NOW Teresa Giordano, Sui Juris, Citizen of California State, expressly not a citizen of the United States (“federal citizen”), appearing specially before this honorable Court, without conferring, waiving, or otherwise granting jurisdiction, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 4 to report and serve this, Her VERIFIED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT against the following named and unnamed individuals.

The Undersigned hereby formally charges:

Gregory Nicolaysen, Esquire, dba Federal Criminal Defense Attorney, with:

(1)
commission of a misdemeanor by the unauthorized practice of law and by failing to produce the Certificate of Oath required to be indorsed upon a license to practice law in the State of California by Section 6067 of the California Business and Professions Code, in violation of Section 6126 of the California Business and Professions Code (two counts);

(2)
commission of a misdemeanor by impairing the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and by depriving Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 242 (two counts);  and,

(3)
commission of a felony by conspiring with two (2) unnamed U.S. Marshals to impair the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and to deprive Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 241 (one count).

John Doe U.S. Marshal with:

(1)
commission of a misdemeanor by impairing the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and by depriving Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 242 (one count);  and,

(2)
commission of a felony by conspiring with Gregory Nicolaysen, Esquire, and with one (1) unnamed U.S. Marshal to impair the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and to deprive Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 241 (one count).

[Please continue next page.]

Jane Doe U.S. Marshal with:

(1)
commission of a misdemeanor by impairing the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and by depriving Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 242 (one count);  and,

(2)
commission of a felony by conspiring with Gregory Nicolaysen, Esquire, and with one (1) unnamed U.S. Marshal to impair the obligations of Teresa Giordano’s contract with Paul Andrew Mitchell for Counsel as a Private Attorney General in the instant case, in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 in the U.S. Constitution, and to deprive Teresa Giordano of Her fundamental Right to effective assistance of Counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment in the U.S. Constitution, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 241 (one count).

AFFIDAVIT OF PROBABLE CAUSE

On April 11, 2002 A.D., as a Co-Plaintiff I executed and filed a civil COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES;  NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO QUASH, in the District Court of the United States, Central Judicial District of California, Southern Division.

On that date, said civil case was assigned Clerk’s docket number #SA CV 02‑0382 GLT (ANx).

On April 22, 2002 A.D., I attended a hearing in the United States District Court in downtown Los Angeles, California.

I was accompanied to the U.S. Courthouse by My Counsel of choice in the instant case, a Private Attorney General by the name of Paul Andrew Mitchell, B.A., M.S.

Mr. Mitchell has extensive professional experience as a Private Attorney General, both in State and in federal courts.  His professional resume is available at Internet URL:

http://www.supremelaw.org/authors/mitchell/resume.htm
Mr. Mitchell is also a qualified Federal Witness under the federal criminal statutes at 18 U.S.C. 1512 and 1513.

Prior to the commencement of any hearings, in the waiting area outside the courtroom I witnessed Mr. Mitchell verbally demand Mr. Gregory Nicolaysen to produce the latter’s license to practice law in the State of California.

Mr. Nicolaysen then failed to produce any license, and instead walked back into the courtroom.

When directed to do so by the U.S. Marshals guarding the hallway, Mr. Mitchell and I entered the courtroom and seated ourselves in the gallery.

When the instant case was called, Mr. Mitchell and I stood up and proceeded to cross the bar.

However, at that precise moment, Mr. Mitchell was confronted by two (2) U.S. Marshals who escorted Mr. Mitchell out of the courtroom.

I objected verbally by stating, “I object.  Mr. Mitchell is My Counsel in this matter.”

Mr. Nicolaysen did cross the bar.

Mr. Nicolaysen did make a formal appearance before this Court.

And, Mr. Nicolaysen did make a false statement to this Court, namely, that I had earlier been served with a “copy” [sic] of a federal criminal indictment in the instant case.

Then, on April 29, 2002 A.D., I obtained from a Deputy Clerk of this Court, Mr. Terry R. Baker, acting on behalf of Sherri R. Carter, Clerk of Court, a SUBPOENA IN A CIVIL CASE commanding Gregory Nicolaysen to produce his license to practice law with certificate of oath indorsed thereon, as required by Section 6067 of the California Business and Professions Code, and to permit inspection and copying of same at 5:00 p.m. on Friday, May 10, 2002 A.D., at the District Court of the United States, 312 N. Spring Street, Los Angeles, California.

Said SUBPOENA was properly served on April 29, 2002 A.D.
To the best of My current information, knowledge, and belief, Mr. Nicolaysen did not produce said license, nor did Mr. Nicolaysen file any pleading(s) attempting to quash said SUBPOENA IN A CIVIL CASE.

On May 19, 2002 A.D., I did receive from Gregory Nicolaysen A Law Corporation [sic], a fax informing Me of a status conference allegedly scheduled for Thursday, May 23, 2002, at 1:30 p.m. in the Courtroom of Judge Dean Pregerson.

To date, however, I have not received any confirmation from this Court of said status conference scheduled for May 23, 2002 A.D.
I am presently endeavoring to expedite the completion and service of the instant CRIMINAL COMPLAINT, in order to ensure that it is filed in advance of said status conference.

I am required by the federal criminal statute at 18 U.S.C. 4 to report all felony federal offenses that I witness to a judge of the United States.

Violations of the federal criminal statute at 18 U.S.C. 241 are felonies.

For all of the reasons stated above, I, Teresa Giordano, believe that sufficient probable cause exists to charge the above named individuals with the federal offenses enumerated above.

This concludes My AFFIDAVIT OF PROBABLE CAUSE in the above entitled matter, at the present time.

AFFIDAVIT AMENDMENT RESERVATION CLAUSE

I, Teresa Giordano, reserve My fundamental Right to amend this VERIFIED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT, at times and places of My own choosing.

INCORPORATION OF VERIFIED DOCUMENT

I hereby incorporate by reference the verified pleading previously filed in the instant case and entitled NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF PLEA AND OF FORMAL TERMINATION OF FEDERAL PUBLIC DEFENDER, BY AFFIDAVIT, as if set forth fully here.

VERIFICATION

I, Teresa Giordano, Sui Juris, hereby verify, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States of America, without the “United States” (federal government), that the above statement of facts and laws is true and correct, according to the best of My current information, knowledge, and belief, so help me God, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1746(1).  See Supremacy Clause (Constitution, Laws and Treaties are the supreme Law of the Land).

Dated:   May 20, 2002 A.D. at 2:00 p.m.

Signed:  /s/ Teresa Giordano

         ____________________________________________

Printed: Teresa Giordano, Citizen of California State

PROOF OF SERVICE

I, Teresa Giordano, Sui Juris, hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States of America, without the “United States” (federal government), that I am at least 18 years of age, a Citizen of ONE OF the United States of America, and that I personally served the following document(s):

VERIFIED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

BY DEFENDANT GIORDANO:

Sixth Amendment;

18 U.S.C. 4, 241, 242;

28 U.S.C. 1652, 1746(1)

by placing one true and correct copy of said document(s) in first class United States Mail, with postage prepaid and properly addressed to the following:

JOHN S. GORDON                           via fax:  (213) 894-6436

RONALD L. CHENG

LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON

ALICIA VILLARREAL

U.S. Department of Justice

c/o 1200 United States Courthouse

312 North Spring Street

Los Angeles 90012

CALIFORNIA, USA

Gregory Nicolaysen, Esquire [sic]        via fax:  (818) 998-8427

dba Federal Criminal Defense Attorney

16000 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 500

Encino 91436

CALIFORNIA, USA

United States Marshals Service       Clerk of Court (3x)

312 North Spring Street              312 North Spring St., Rm. G-8

Los Angeles 90012                    Los Angeles 90012

CALIFORNIA, USA                      CALIFORNIA, USA

[See USPS Publication #221 for addressing instructions.]

Dated:   May 20, 2002 A.D.
Signed:  /s/ Teresa Giordano

         ____________________________________________

Printed: Teresa Giordano, Citizen of California State
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